HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 26, 2002
2:39 PM

TAPE HFC 02 — 66, Side A
TAPE HFC 02 - 66, Side B

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair WIllianms called the House Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 2:39 PM

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative El don Mul der, Co-Chair
Representative Bill WIlIlianms, Co-Chair
Representati ve Con Bunde, Vice-Chair
Representative Eric Croft
Represent ati ve John Davi es
Representative John Harris
Representative Bill Hudson
Representati ve Ken Lancaster
Representative Carl Mses
Representative Ji m Wit aker

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Ri chard Foster

ALSO PRESENT

Representati ve Norm Rokeberg; Catherine Reardon, Director,
D vision of Cccupational Licensing, Departnment of Conmunity
and Econom c Devel opnment; Bill Church, Staff, Representative
Qgan; Rebecca Nance Ganez, Special Deputy, Departnment of
Communi ty and Econom ¢ Devel opnent.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Franco Venuti, |1CBO Inspector, Honmer; Dave Ownens, Ownens
| nspections, WMatsu;

SUMVARY

HB 27 An Act relating to the licensure and registration

of individuals who perform hone inspections;
relating to honme inspection requirenments for
residential |oans purchased or approved by the
Al aska Housing Finance Corporation; relating to
civil actions by and agai nst hone inspectors; and
providing for an effective date.

HB 27 was heard and HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

House Fi nance Committee 1 03/ 26/ 02 2:39 PM



HB 128 An Act relating to enploynent of certain mnors in
agriculture.

CSHB 128 (L&C) was REPORTED out of Conmittee with
a "do pass" recommendation and wth previously
published fiscal note: LW #1.

HOUSE BI LL NO. 27

An Act relating to the licensure and registration of
i ndi vidual s who perform hone inspections; relating to
honme inspection requirenments for residential |oans
purchased or approved by the Alaska Housing Finance
Corporation; relating to civil actions by and against
home i nspectors; and providing for an effective date.

REPRESENTATI VE NORM ROKEBERG, SPONSOR, provi ded nenbers with
proposed comm ttee substitute 22-LS0136\G 2/13/02 (copy on
file).

Representative Harris MOWED to ADOPT commttee substitute
22-LS0136\ G 2/13/02. There being NO OBJECTION, it was so
or der ed.

Representative Rokeberg observed that the conduct and
activity of home inspections are an integral part of many
real estate transactions in the state of Al aska, but anyone
can call hinself or herself a home inspector. He maintained
t hat consunmers shoul d have recourse agai nst hone inspectors,
but observed that they are not regulated. He stressed that
home i nspectors are perceived differently within the state.
He explained that initial di scussions regarding the
regul ati on of hone inspectors included requests to establish
a separate hone inspector's board. The cost to create a
board for 150 inspectors around the state was estinated
between $1,500 and $1,700 dollars [per inspector]. The
| egi sl ation incorporates honme inspectors under specialty

contractor licensure in the Division of COccupational
Licensing. This would lower the price to $250 dollars per
bi annual |icense. The real estate practitioners wanted to

shift sonme of the liability away from them He concluded
that a shift in responsibility would not be fair. The intent
is to protect the public. The statute of repose and the
statute of Jlimtation were shortened: one year for an
existing honme or two years for a new honme. Passing around
the inspection report has been prohibited. A tight circle
has been drawn around those that have access to the report.
A hone inspector would give the inspection to the client.
Anyone el se woul d have to have approval, including a | ender.
Reports would have a limted [ife. A person could not bring
a cause against an inspector on an old report that they did
not pay for. The legislation would not allow inspectors to
limt liability through contractual |anguage. He concl uded

House Fi nance Committee 2 03/ 26/ 02 2:39 PM



that the consuner and inspectors would be protected; and
ot her persons associated with inspections would know the
ground rules. The legislation has the support of the Al aska
and | ocal boards of realtors, Al aska Hone Buil ders
Association and the City of Anchorage.

Representative Lancaster referred to a letter by Mke
Tarui ainen (copy on file.) He clarified that there would be
an engi neer's excl usion.

Representati ve Rokeberg referred to section 31 on page 16;
and page 15, line 8 and 17. He explained that a |icensed
engi neer would be exenpted from having to be a registered
hone inspector. An engineer that is doing honme inspections
under the normal course of his duties could not advertise
for home inspections unless he 1is |licensed under the
| egi slation. He acknow edged that cost of services to
consuners and regulations could be increased. He disagreed
that the cost to the state would be increased.

Representative Hudson asked if lending institutions support
the legislation. Representative Lancaster noted that the
| eading banks in the state support the legislation. He
questioned if comrercial inspections would be covered.
Represent ati ve Rokeberg expl ai ned that the |egislation would
only cover residential inspections.

Representative \Witaker asked the criteria for a qualified
honme inspector. Representative Rokeberg noted that existing
i nspectors would be grandfathered in with their existing
experience. An examnation wuld be required after the
| egi sl ation takes effect.

Representati ve Hudson observed that |icensees generally pay
their costs. Representative Rokeberg agreed and noted that
statutes require that occupational |icensees pay 100 percent
of their costs. He explained that there mght be sone
increased costs while the first regulations are drafted.
There woul d be a pay back to adjust costs.

Co-Chair WIllianms referred to page 5, lines 25 and 26: scope
on intended inspections. Representative Rokeberg noted that
the section is nodified by subsection (a), which refers to
home inspections. He further explained that two types of
honme inspectors would be regulated [those that inspect
exi sting honmes and those that inspect new hones]. Mst hone
i nspectors of existing hones received they exam nation under
the National Association of Honme |Inspectors. Mst inspectors
of new honmes are licensed under the International Conference
of Building Oficials (1CBO, as required for hones financed
by the Alaska Housing Finance Corporation (AHFC). In
addition the legislation would include a joint |icensee
provi sion and an associ ate hone inspector: those persons new
to the industry.

House Fi nance Committee 3 03/ 26/ 02 2:39 PM



Representative Lancaster noted that areas w thout code would
also be covered. Representative Rokeberg observed that
Al aska Housi ng Fi nance Cor poration ( AHFCO) requires
i nspections.

CATHERI NE REARDON, DI RECTOR, DIVISION OF OCCUPATI ONAL
LI CENSI NG DEPARTMENT OF COVMUNI TY AND ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT
provided information on the legislation. The Division has
worked with the sponsor to address technical concerns. She
di scussed the fiscal costs of the legislation. She noted
that the l|egislation renoves the board, which would reduce
the cost. The fiscal note would be reduced to $64.5 thousand
dollars the first year and $58.5 thousand dol | ars throughout
subsequent vyears. Hone inspectors wuld be a type of
specialty contractor. Fee setting would be shared anongst
all contractors.

In response to a question by Representative Hudson, Ms.
Reardon clarified that there are no standards other than
those for a business licenses. In response to a question by
Representative Lancaster, M. Reardon acknow edged that
addi tional regulation would acconpany the | egislation.

Representati ve Rokeberg asked the anount of the current
contractor-licensing fee. M. Reardon responded that the
current licensing fee is $250 dollars for two years. Adding
hone inspectors would increase the fee to $300 - $375 for a
two-year license: a $25 dollar a year increase.

Represent ati ve Wit aker understood that an exam nation woul d
be required. Ms. Reardon explained that after the
| egislation is adopted a standardi zed test would be given
(through the private sector).

Representative Harris asked if the |icenses would support
the cost of the program M. Reardon affirmed and clarified
that the funding source woul d be receipt-supported services,
as required by law. The general fund obligations would not
be increased.

Represent ati ve Rokeberg questioned the cost in the first two
years. Ms. Reardon referred to the fiscal note. She observed
that there would be no funding for travel, since the board
would be elimnated. Fees would be collected and expended
for a half-time licensing examner and a half-tine
i nvesti gat or.

JOHN BI TNEY, LEG SLATIVE LI AISON, ALASKA HOUSI NG FI NANCE
CORPORATI ON, DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE provided information
regarding the legislation. In 1992, during the nerger of
rural prograns wth AHFC, there was concern wth
construction standards. Legislation was passed, which
requi red honme inspections on honmes that were constructed

House Fi nance Committee 4 03/ 26/ 02 2:39 PM



after June 30, 1992, to ensure that they conply wth
standards of the International Conference of Building
Oficials (1CBO before the hone could be purchased through
AHFC. Al aska Housing Finance Corporation required that
soneone certified by 1CBO signed off on newy constructed
homes before AHFC woul d purchase the nortgage. The systemis
still working but it is a separate system The |egislation
proposes that the state |icense hone inspectors. He observed
that AHFC s position is that if the state is going to set up
the system that the state license inspectors to performthe
AHFC inspections and the |1CBO system be replaced so that
there aren't separate systens. In addition, AHFC asks that
the inspectors be licensed to a construction standard that
is the equivalent of an 1CBO inspector, to retain standard
quality. Sections 33 and 34 of the bill apply to the
transfer of inspections to state l|icensed inspectors. The
I nternational Conference of Building Oficials programwould
be repeal ed.

Representative Hudson wanted to ensure that the |egislation
woul d provide greater availability of inspectors at a |ower
cost to the consuner and that safety would be protected with
liability. He asked how many of the current inspectors would
be di senfranchi sed.

M. Bitney did not know how many | CBO i nspectors were in the
state prior to the AHFC requirenent. He did not think that
the legislation would reduce the anmount of [1CBO quality
I nspect ors.

Representative Hudson asked if inspectors have to carry
liability insurance to be used by AHFC. M. Bitney noted
that they are currently protected under the gross negligence
standard, which woul d be repeal ed under the |egislation.

Representati ve Rokeber g expl ained that current home
i nspectors are subject to common |aw and police |law They
endeavor to insulate thenselves by contract, which limts
liability to the anmount of the contract. The courts have
rejected that shield. Under current law, 1CBO inspectors
have full inpunity because of the difficulty of show ng that
a faulty report resulted in gross negligence. The standard
woul d be | owered. The statute of limtation has been reduced
to two years for new construction and one year for existing
structures. There is also an assurity bond of $5 thousand
dol | ars.

I n response to a question by Vi ce-Chair Bunde,
Representati ve Rokeberg stressed that the intent is not to
provide a target for consuners that make a bad decision. He
noted that the inspection does not «certify that the
foundation or roof are sound. The inspection is only a
visual inspection to alert a potential honeowner of the need
to repair.

House Fi nance Committee 5 03/ 26/ 02 2:39 PM



Ms. Reardon noted that the cost of the 1CBO hone inspector
examis $170 dollars and the Al aska State Housing Authority
(ASHA) exam is $195 dollars. The exans are offered in
Anchorage and may be avail abl e in Fairbanks.

Ms. Reardon discussed the fiscal note. She observed that
there would be $6 thousand dollars for one tinme cost for
office supplies and conputer equipnment. WMst of the cost
woul d be for personnel services. There is one part-tine
exam ner position. There wuld also be a half tine
i nvestigator position to address conplaints. She explained
that the new fiscal note would not require $6.3 thousand
dollars for travel

Representative Witaker noted that fees would pay the cost.
The cost would be $300 to $350 dollars for a 2-year |icense.

The bill treats home inspectors in the category of specialty
contractors. Ms. Reardon pointed out that the majority of
| icenses wunder the division do not require liability

i nsurance or bondi ng.

Representative Rokeberg asked how many enployees are
currently assigned to the contractor program M. Reardon
noted that the contractor program covers 500 |icenses. There
are two and a half licensing examners working with the
program

TAPE HFC 02 - 66, Side B

Ms. Reardon noted that there is a portion of an investigator
position associated wth the program She explained that
there is not as nmuch investigator activity because the
construction licensing law does not allow revocation or
fines for inconpetent work. The only follow up is to refer
conplainants to the bond. Under the |egislation, there would
be an ability to investigate and discipline |licensees. The
Department of Labor and Workforce Devel opnent receives a
$200 hundred thousand dollar RSA fromthe division each year
for unlicensed inspector investigations.

Represent ati ve Rokeberg pointed out that for an addition of
one 20" of the licensees that the request would increase the
i nspector staff by one-sixth. He questioned the cost
assunpti ons.

Ms. Reardon explained that a new program costs nore than
adding additional persons to an existing program The
regul ations and applications forns already exist for an
exi sting program She pointed out that it is difficult to
hire a quarter time worker. She pointed out that the program
is already using nore resources than it used to.

House Fi nance Committee 6 03/ 26/ 02 2:39 PM



Representative Rokeberg pointed out that there are 150
i nspectors, which would only result in an application every
ot her day. Ms. Reardon anticipated that the 150 applications
woul d be received imedi ately. She pointed out that if the
fiscal note is not approved, but that the staff is still
required, the program will still get the actual costs and
the fee would remain the sanme. What is spent on them woul d
be reflected in the fee.

FRANCO  VENUTI , | CBO | NSPECTOR, HOMVER, testified via
tel econference in opposition to the |egislation. He
expressed concern with the proposed commttee substitute. He
mai nt ai ned that inspectors do not support the |egislation

He observed that the inpetus for the bill has cone from
outside of the industry. He had not heard anyone testifying
in support of the legislation from the Builder’s

Associ ation. He noted that it would cost up to $2 thousand
dollars a year to receive a l|license. He asked why the
legislation is limted to home inspectors for the Al aska
Housi ng Finance Corporation properties. He reiterated that
the legislation is not supported by the industry and
expressed concern regarding the added cost to the consuner
and added bureaucracy.

DAVE OVWENS, |1CBO |[|INSPECTOR, OWENS | NSPECTIONS, MATSU

testified via teleconference. He expressed support for cost
cutting revisions, which would transfer the function from
the Departnent of Labor to the Departnment of Community and
Econom ¢ Devel opnment. He expressed concern with the repea

of AS 18.56.300 contained on page 21, line 31. He pointed
out that AHFC inspectors are code inspectors. He stressed
the need to separate code inspectors from honme inspectors.

He expressed concern that there is no code for residential

inspections in the state of Al aska. He enphasized that the
contractors do not build the buildings and don’t always see
ever yt hi ng.

Representative Rokeberg stated that he had net wth a
variety of honme inspectors and tried to keep them inforned
regardi ng changes to the legislation. He acknow edged that
sone hone inspectors have problens with the |egislation. He
noted that the standard in statute is gross negligence. He
felt that the fiscal note was too high. He expressed concern
that the existing specialty contractors would balk at the
increase in fees <cased by the addition of the hone
I nspect ors.

Represent ati ve Lancast er spoke in support of t he
| egi sl ati on.

In response to a question by Representative Whitaker,

Represent ati ve Rokeberg expl ai ned that the |egislation would
only add regulation to the existing structure. He observed

House Fi nance Committee 7 03/ 26/ 02 2:39 PM



that inspections are required for new hones financed by
AHFC.

M. Bitney noted that the AHFC nortgages account for 45
percent of the market. The legislation only applies to new
construction. He did not know the nunber of new hones being
fi nanced.

Representative Whitaker stressed that another [|ayer was
being added. He questioned the cost of the consuner in
relationship to the value. Representative Rokeberg expl ai ned
that the current inspection fee is typically $350 dollars.
The biannual license fee is $350 dollars; the bonding fee is
$500 dollar; and there is a liability fee. He estimted that
i nspectors would do between 50 and 350 inspections a year.
The licensure would increase the cost of the inspection by
$10 to $20 dol |l ars.

Representative Mil der observed that the only way to have a
home built wthout 1CBO [inspections] is to have it self
fi nanced.

Representative John Davies clarified that the |egislation
does not require inspections.

Represent ati ve Rokeberg noted that the Board was renoved and
the licensure was added to the hone specialty.

HB 27 was heard and HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

HOUSE BILL NO 128

An Act relating to enploynent of certain mnors in
agriculture.

BILL CHURCH, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE OGAN, testified in
support of the legislation on behalf of the sponsor. In |late
2000, Representative Ogan was nade aware that Al askan
farmers were having problens with the permtting process
when hiring mnors for seasonal enploynent. Al askan farners
need to be able to hire workers at a nonments notice when the
crop is at its peak and the weather is cooperating. Mnors
make up the bulk of a ready pool of sumer workers to help
the farmers. Probl ems have occurred in the past when the
Department of Labor and Workforce Devel opnment have not been
able to provide tinely approval of the work permt request.

House Bill 128 streamines the approval process between the
departnment and enpl oyers wanting to hire mnors. Under this
bill an enpl oyer may secure pre-approval fromthe depart nent

to hire a mnor, who is at |east 14 years of age, to perform
a specific set of job duties in advance of an actual job
offer to a mnor. M. Church mintained that the

House Fi nance Committee 8 03/ 26/ 02 2:39 PM



| egi sl ati on benefits any enployer — fromfarmng, fishing to
fast food restaurants.

The protection of mnors renmains paramount wth this
pr oposal . Once an enployer hires a mnor to perform the
pr e- approved j ob:

e The departnent work permt request form nust be signed
by a parent or legal guardian of the mnor, and filed
wth the comm ssioner within seven cal endar days after
t he m nor begi ns worki ng,

e The work permt is valid only for the job and |isted
duties specified on the pre-approved consent,

e The work permt is valid for the cal endar year in which
it is executed, in the case of a witten consent
executed in Decenber, the permt is valid for that
cal endar year, the next calendar year, or both,
depending on the terns of the witten consent, and

« A mnor cannot begin any changed or new job duties
until the departnent approves the changes.

M. Church observed that the | egislation does not renove the
current work permt process for those enployers who wsh to
use it.

REBECCA NANCE GAMEZ, DEPUTY COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF
COWUNITY AND ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT, stated that t he
departnment has worked with the sponsor and now supports the
| egi slation. The fiscal note addresses the costs for |egal
service, public notices, hearing space rental and revising
and reprinting posters.

Representative John Davies asked if the |egislation would be
applicable to all enployers. M. Nance affirned that it
woul d be avail able for all enployers that wish to use it.

Vice-Chair Bunde MOVED to report CSHB 128 (L&C) out of
Commttee with the acconpanying fiscal note. He spoke in
support of the legislation and felt that it would help
mnors to find enploynent. Representative John Davies
agreed. There being NO OBJECTION, it was so ordered.

CSHB 128 (L&C) was REPORTED out of Commttee with a "do
pass" recommendation and with previously published fiscal
note: LW #1.

ADJ QURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 4:02 PM

House Fi nance Committee 9 03/ 26/ 02 2:39 PM



